CITY OF SANDUSKY COMMISSIONERS - REGULAR SESSION
JULY 25, 2011 PAGE |1

Dan Kaman called the meeting to order at 5 p.m. after the Invocation, given by Dave Waddington, and
the Pledge of Allegiance.

The clerk called the roll and the following Commissioners responded: Dave Waddington, Diedre Cole,
Pervis Brown, Dan Kaman, John Hamilton, Dick Brady and Julie Farrar.

City staff present: Todd Roth — Engineer, Jim Lang — Interim Police Chief, Paul Ricci — Fire Chief, Scott
Miller — General Services Director, Carrie Handy — Chief Planner, Tom Whitted — IT Manager, Don Icsman
— Law Director & Acting City Manager, Hank Solowiej — Finance Director and Kelly Kresser — Commission
Clerk.

Upon motion of Dave Waddington and second of Diedre Cole, the commission voted to approve the
minutes of the July 11 and July 18, 2011 meetings and dispensed with the oral reading. All Ayes. The
President declared the motion passed.

PRESENTATIONS

Dave Waddington presented a certificate of accomplishment to Shawn Bahnsen who was the first
place champion for the third time at the golf tournament held at Mills Creek Golf Course on July 23.
Dave Waddington thanked Shawn Bahnsen for giving back to the kids in the community with the
assistance he provides at the golf course.

Pam Colbert, Executive Director of the United Way of Erie County, provided a recap of the 2010
annual report and distributed copies to the commissioners. Pam Colbert said United Way of Erie County
has been in the community since 1923 and its mission is to create the organized capacity for people to
care for one another. She said there are four approved program areas including children and youth
services, independence and self sufficiency, basic and emergency needs and services for physical and
mental health. 2010 highlights for the United Way of Erie County are as follows:

e 2-1-1 Information and Referral Hotline - handled 1836 calls

e Ohio Benefit Bank - provided tax clinics for 40 individuals; 8 volunteers at 3 sites
e Erie County Community Council

e FamilyWize Discount Prescription cards - 652 claims resulting in $6000 in savings
e The Stamp Out Hunger campaign - provided 7,100 lbs. of food

e Day of Caring - 20 volunteers for REV3 Triathlon

e Make A Difference Day - Adopt a Highway and food collection

e Training programs

Pam Colbert provided information relative to the demographics of the clientele served and noted the
largest percentage was from the City of Sandusky and Perkins Township. She recapped the specific
number of persons affected by the United Way of Erie County including residents, families, individuals,
volunteers, persons with disabilities and seniors. The goal of the United Way of Erie County is to make
sure that people who need services and resources in Erie County know where and how to access them.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Gary Guendelsberger, 726 Walnut Ridge Lane, said during the April 25 city commission meeting, a
discussion took place about reallocating revolving loan fund (RLF) monies for street projects. He said it
would be unwise for the city commission to reallocate RLF monies for the Columbus Avenue resurfacing
project (ltem #2).

Upon motion of Diedre Cole and second of Dave Waddington, the commission voted to accept all
communications. All Ayes. The President declared the motion passed.

CURRENT BUSINESS

ITEM #1 - Submitted by Scott A. Miller, Director of General Services

Budgetary Information: The City of Livingston, KY has offered $4,400 for the purchase of two former
patrol vehicles with equipment from the City of Sandusky. The City of Livingston, KY is starting a new
program and needs marked vehicles. The fleet maintenance supervisor and the director of general
services have determined that this is a fair price and better than what would be expected if the vehicles
and equipment were auctioned on www.govdeals.com and are recommending the sale of the vehicles




CITY OF SANDUSKY COMMISSIONERS - REGULAR SESSION
JULY 25, 2011 PAGE |2

and equipment to the City of Livingston, KY. In addition to obtaining the maximum return to the city for
the sale, it is our desire to support and cooperate with other governmental entities, especially during
the current economical conditions.

ORDINANCE NO. 11-071: It is requested an Ordinance be passed declaring that the 2005 Chevrolet
Impala and 2003 Ford Crown Victoria as being unnecessary and unfit for city use pursuant to section
25 of the city charter, authorizing the city manager to enter into a contract for its sale to the City of
Livingston, KY; and declaring that this Ordinance shall take immediate effect in accordance with section
14 of the city charter.

Upon motion of Pervis Brown and second of Dave Waddington, the commission voted to adopt this
Ordinance under suspension of the rules and in accordance with Section 14 of the city charter. Roll call
on the motion: Yeas: Dave Waddington, Diedre Cole, Pervis Brown, Dan Kaman, John Hamilton, Dick
Brady and Julie Farrar, 7. The President declared the motion passed. Roll call on the Ordinance: Yeas:
Dave Waddington, Diedre Cole, Pervis Brown, Dan Kaman, John Hamilton, Dick Brady and Julie Farrar,
7. The President declared the Ordinance passed.

ITEM #2 - Submitted by Jane E. Cullen, Engineering Technician

Budgetary Information: The estimated cost of the project, including engineering, inspection,
advertising and miscellaneous costs is $182,000. The project will be funded with Community
Development Block Grant funds in the amount of $150,000 and the S5 license fee fund will provide the
remaining $32,000.

RESOLUTION NO. 028-11R: It is requested a Resolution be passed declaring the necessity for the city to
proceed with the proposed Columbus Avenue resurfacing project; approving the specifications and
engineer’s estimate of cost thereof; and directing the city manager to advertise for and receive bids in
relation thereto; and declaring that this Resolution shall take immediate effect in accordance with
section 14 of the city charter.

Upon motion of Dave Waddington and second of Pervis Brown, the commission voted to adopt this
Resolution under suspension of the rules and in accordance with Section 14 of the city charter.

Discussion: Carrie Handy said the amount of revolving loan fund (RLF) money proposed to be used for
this project was authorized by the commission through their approval of the CDBG action plan budget.
She said the reallocation amount is $13,000 and would need to be amended if the city commission does
not wish to use RLF money for the project. Carrie Handy said it was suggested to utilize a large sum of
RLF funds for a road project but she would not recommend this as it does not regenerate as if when
used for a small business. Dick Brady said he is opposed to using any RLF money for a road project and
asked if there is precedence for doing so. Dick Brady said the concept of a RLF is to generate future
dollars and does not see a return for putting this money into blacktop. He believes the $13,000 could
perhaps be obtained from another source and said RLF monies should be used to leverage the city’s
assets. Dick Brady said this project has not yet been bid and therefore, the city does not know what the
true cost is; it may actually be less than the engineer’s estimate. Carrie Handy said there is a large
balance (over $7,000) in the RLF which is a sufficient amount to leverage for a business requesting a
loan. Carrie Handy said if the money sits in a RLF too long, HUD checks on the balance and monitors how
the program income is spent. She said $160,000 of RLF money was spent for demolition of the trailer
park at Lions Park and the monies available must be spent at some point in time. Dave Waddington said
he supports this project to improve upon a street with both RLF money and $5 license fee funds. John
Hamilton asked the location of Homestead Street and if the underground piping is all working well in
this area. Todd Roth said Homestead Street is just south of the Columbus Avenue underpass and noted
the lines are being videotaped to assess their condition prior to starting the project. Dick Brady asked if
the RLF monies proposed to be spent would be lower if the total cost is less than projected and Carrie
Handy said the regular CDBG money would be spent first.

Roll call on the motion: Yeas: Dave Waddington, Diedre Cole, Pervis Brown, Dan Kaman, John
Hamilton and Julie Farrar, 6. Nays: Dick Brady, 1. The President declared the motion passed. Roll call
on the Resolution: Yeas: Dave Waddington, Diedre Cole, Pervis Brown, Dan Kaman, John Hamilton
and Julie Farrar, 6. Nays: Dick Brady, 1. The President declared the Resolution passed.

ITEM #3 — Submitted by Kelly L. Kresser, Clerk of the City Commission

A request has been received from the Ohio Division of Liquor Control for a new C1 and C2 liquor
permit for Dolgen Midwest, LLC, dba Dollar General Store, 1622 Cleveland Road, Sandusky. It is
requested the clerk notify the Ohio Division of Liquor Control the city has no objection to issuance of
these new permits.



CITY OF SANDUSKY COMMISSIONERS - REGULAR SESSION
JULY 25, 2011 PAGE |3

Upon motion of Dave Waddington and second of Julie Farrar, the commission voted to have the clerk
notify the Ohio Division of Liquor Control the city has no objections to the issuance of these new
permits. Roll call on the motion: Yeas: Dave Waddington, Pervis Brown, Dan Kaman, John Hamilton,
Dick Brady and Julie Farrar, 6. Nays: Diedre Cole, 1. The President declared the motion passed.

ITEM #4 — Submitted by Kelly L. Kresser, Clerk of the City Commission

A request has been received from the Ohio Division of Liquor Control for a new C1 and C2 liquor
permit for Dolgen Midwest, LLC, dba Dollar General Store, 2609 Venice Road, Sandusky. It is requested
the clerk notify the Ohio Division of Liquor Control the city has no objection to issuance of these new
permits.

Upon motion of Pervis Brown and second of Dave Waddington, the commission voted to have the
clerk notify the Ohio Division of Liquor Control the city has no objections to the issuance of these new
permits. Roll call on the motion: Yeas: Dave Waddington, Pervis Brown, Dan Kaman, John Hamilton,
Dick Brady and Julie Farrar, 6. Nays: Diedre Cole, 1. The President declared the motion passed.

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

Upon motion of Julie Farrar and second of Diedre Cole, the commission voted to accept a donation in
the amount of $150 from Joann Kleinfelder to the Green Fund for trees to be planted in the boulevard
(Account #863 3430 485 00). All Ayes. The President declared the motion passed.

Upon motion of Dave Waddington and second of Pervis Brown, the commission voted to accept a
donation in the amount of $150 from Thomas Lazzara to the Green Fund for trees to be planted in the
boulevard (Account #863 3430 485 00). All Ayes. The President declared the motion passed.

Upon motion of Dave Waddington and second of Pervis Brown, the commission voted to accept a
donation in the amount of $75 from the City of Independence, Ohio to the Friends of the Greenhouse
Fund (Account #863 3483 485 00). All Ayes. The President declared the motion passed.

Upon motion of Dave Waddington and second of Julie Farrar, the commission voted to accept a
donation in the amount of $1,550 from David and Victoria Pletcher in honor of their parents to the
Park Trust Fund (Account #863 4860 485 00). All Ayes. The President declared the motion passed.

Upon motion of Pervis Brown and second of Diedre Cole, the commission voted to accept a donation
in the amount of $500 from Hoty Enterprises, Inc. on behalf of Sandusky Boat Storage, LLC, to the
Sandusky Recreation Department for the children’s summer programs. All Ayes. The President
declared the motion passed.

Don Icsman provided an update regarding the farm land property which is for sale and owned by the
City of Sandusky at Bogart Road and Old Railroad; he distributed copies of the two offers received to
date. He said an amendment to the first proposal was received today increasing the per acre offer. Don
Icsman said the city commission will ultimately decide to whom it will sell the property and under what
terms. He said the first offer made indicated a closing by the end of this week while the second offer is
contingent upon the buyer obtaining financing sixty days beyond the acceptance date. Don lcsman said
these are all viable offers to be considered and a timetable should be established to allow the sale to
occur.

Upon motion of Pervis Brown and second of Dave Waddington, the commission voted to take bids for
sale of this property until August 8.

Discussion: Dan Kaman said interested bidders should be referred to David Biechele, the city’s agent.
Don Icsman said both parties who have already made offers have attorneys and he will present the
offers received to the city commission at the second meeting in August. Don Icsman said the city
commission will make a decision based upon the offers and an ordinance will then be brought forward
for consideration. Dick Brady said he will make a call based upon the offers made and the ability of the
purchaser to obtain financing; Dan Kaman said this decision will be based upon the best offer made. Don
Icsman said he will communicate this information to those who have already made offers on the
property.

All Ayes. The President declared the motion passed.



CITY OF SANDUSKY COMMISSIONERS - REGULAR SESSION
JULY 25, 2011 PAGE |4

OLD BUSINESS

Dave Waddington said he recently met with Hank Solowiej about the housing issue and within the last
week, a theft crime claim was made with the city’s insurance company for over $1 million. He feels
confident the city may seek closure for this issue by the end of the year. Hank Solowiej said
documentation has been sent to the insurance company and he will be meeting with them this week
about the process.

NEW BUSINESS

John Hamilton asked who is running the new paper district marina which is a rather large investment
for the city. John Hamilton said he does not believe the dockhand positions were bid out correctly and
the job description lists three pages of analytical skills, but nothing about tying a boat to a cleat on a
dock. John Hamilton asked if the city is marketing the marina or if three people are working there
waiting for boats to show up. He said it was more important for one employee to go fishing than to work
and wondered if this were still a problem. John Hamilton said Jon Komarek had a plan and was trying to
market the marina, but the marina is being treated as a bureaucracy rather than as a business. John
Hamilton said Leamington is a sister city to Sandusky and we could benefit by visiting this marina to
learn how to run ours and get other ideas. John Hamilton said the finger piers closest to the bay (for
larger boats) are 32’ apart and built for a 40’ — 45’ boat, yet larger boats have a 15’ beam and if two
were put together, there would not be room for fenders. John Hamilton said there is not a place to plug
a 30 amp cord, yet there is supposed to be electric service. He said the city should look into some of
these issues before making the final payment for the marina construction. John Hamilton said the
dockmaster’s office should face the docks and Sandusky Bay and that the food or concession area
should face the (future) amphitheatre/stage area. Scott Miller said there are three seasonal employees
currently working at the marina and two others are being worked into the schedule. He said there are
less people working in the morning than in the afternoons and that security and operational items are
still a work in progress. John Hamilton asked if these jobs were bid out as they can be traced to
nepotism and asked if affirmative action took place or if any female employees were hired. Todd Roth
said the positions were advertised as dockhands in the newspaper and two of the employees were hired
because of past experience working at other marinas. He said the job description may not have had the
specific requirements mentioned by John Hamilton, but noted those hired have past experience. John
Hamilton asked how many of the employees will leave by August 15 for college and Scott Miller said
two. Diedre Cole said she is terribly sorry for John Hamilton things did not work out for his (John’s)
uncle, Jon Komarek, to work at the marina, but felt ‘throwing the staff under the bus’ because of what
he perceives as problems with the marina is inappropriate. Diedre Cole said to accuse the staff of
nepotism when John’s uncle was running the marina, is the pot calling the kettle black. Diedre Cole said
the city is muddling through with opening of the marina through this season and is doing the best it can
with what it has. Diedre Cole applauded the staff for getting the marina up and running and said the city
commission voted for what was constructed and paid for. John Hamilton said just prior to the opening
of the marina, there was not a manager and he suggested hiring his uncle who is a very fair person.
John Hamilton said Jon Komarek may have had it coming to lose his job but as a taxpayer and a boat
owner, he sees some real problems with the marina. Dan Kaman said he has been to the new marina
three times since it opened and said one of the dockhands who helped him tie up was an eagle scout
and does know how to tie knots. He said the other employee worked at marinas at Kelleys Island and in
Sandusky.

Don lcsman said he is disappointed at John Hamilton’s remarks and wished he (John) would have said
something when this happened. Don Icsman said he feels very comfortable with the people currently
running the marina and that the employees were hired through human resources, and some, at the
behest of Jon Komarek. Don Icsman said one of the problems with Jon Komarek was that he was trying
to spend too much money at/for a brand new marina. Don Icsman said the concept is to put the
management of the marina together with the management of the boat launch facility and he will
explore ideas about who the right person is to do this. He has spoken with the former police chief, Bob
Runner, who is also a captain, who has some very good ideas along these lines. Don Icsman said the city
put its faith into reputable and competent people in building the marina, but this does not mean it is
perfect. Don Icsman said he is disappointed such a positive thing can be tainted for personal agendas.
John Hamilton said he was not making this a personal agenda, he is looking at reality.

Pervis Brown said he received a phone call from Marvin Hunter who was cited for hauling refuse
beyond the hours posted in the city’s ordinance and for hauling out of zone. Pervis Brown said the
commission should take another look at this law which was sitting on a shelf for many years but recently
put into effect and which people are not aware of. He said some issues were brought forward regarding



CITY OF SANDUSKY COMMISSIONERS - REGULAR SESSION
JULY 25, 2011 PAGE |5

compactors but the law is vague regarding others. Pervis Brown said the police force may interpret
some things in the ordinance and it should all be made clear. He said haulers picking up trash from
backyards previously were permitted to do so on any day and in any zone. Pervis Brown said in fairness,
haulers should be made aware of the law and its intent. Diedre Cole said at the last commission
meeting, she mentioned plans to host a series of public meetings for all trash haulers to provide a
thorough understanding of how the solid waste laws work. She would also like to provide information
about where money can be obtained to upgrade equipment. Diedre Cole said she has not received a
response from Jim Lang or Don Icsman about this issue which was brought to her attention during the
weekend, but will contact Marvin Hunter once she does. Dan Kaman asked Diedre Cole and Pervis
Brown to work on this issue and report back to the full city commission with recommendations. Pervis
Brown said more immediate action needs to take place to freeze or cease the issuance of citations to
persons who should not be getting them. Dick Brady said this is not how government works and the city
should not not enforce an ordinance duly passed by the city commission. Dick Brady asked Don Icsman
to explain what Pervis Brown is talking about regarding curbside recycling and picking up trash in zones
and from backyards. Don Icsman said there is an ordinance about refuse hauling and the city
commission recently voted to keep it in place. Don Icsman said the city’s paralegal attended every
meeting held for the haulers during the past couple of years, they were recorded, and there was never
discussion about not enforcing the zones with respect to backyard pickup. He said the idea of requiring
compactor trucks has been in existence for 15 years and a legal opinion was rendered by an expert in
zoning who said the city could enforce the ordinance as it determined, or effective January 1. He said
the city cannot be responsible for those who did not attend the meetings and that the haulers knew the
enforcement aspect was coming. This is a quality of life issue and a noise issue; the only new thing in the
ordinance pertained to recycling. Don Icsman said part of the city’s agreement with the EPA was to
begin enforcement of the ordinance. He said the city commission could, over his objection, vote to
change this ordinance. Dan Kaman said the city is spending way too much time continuing to talk about
trash every two weeks. Dave Waddington said there is a solid waste district policy committee and that
the city tried to save jobs rather than being driven to one hauler. Dave Waddington said the solid waste
appeals board should be the starting point for these types of issues. Julie Farrar reminded residents to
be considerate by taking trash containers to the back of their house once they have been emptied and
Dan Kaman said he wishes everyone had a trash barrel.

Upon motion of Dave Waddington and second of Diedre Cole, the commission voted to hold an
executive session regarding personnel, police department. Roll call on the motion: Yeas: Dave
Waddington, Diedre Cole, Pervis Brown, Dan Kaman, John Hamilton, Dick Brady and Julie Farrar, 7.
The President declared the motion passed.

Upon motion of Dave Waddington and second of Diedre Cole, the commission voted to hold an
executive session regarding the purchase and sale of real property. Roll call on the motion: Yeas: Dave
Waddington, Diedre Cole, Pervis Brown, Dan Kaman, John Hamilton, Dick Brady and Julie Farrar, 7.
The President declared the motion passed.

Under Audience Participation, the following persons offered their comments:

Wesley Poole, 1939 East Oldgate, suggested the law written about picking up trash in specific zones did
not necessarily pertain to those picking up trash from backyards. He said this issue deals with livelihoods
and jobs and should be straightened out. Wesley Poole asked why police are spending a lot of time on
this issue with all of the beatings and killings in the community. Don Icsman said the effective
enforcement date of the new solid waste ordinance was January 1 and the city commission requested
that it be enforced by the police at a public meeting. Don Icsman said regulating trash and noise is a
quality of life issue. Wesley Poole said Marvin Hunter’s problem started with picking up trash in zones
behind homes and Don Icsman said this particular issue was not discussed during the meetings held last
year. He said there are tapes of all of the meetings and he does not know where this misconception
came from. Wesley Poole said the issue is whether the law is productive and whether it does (or does
not) have unintended consequences. Wesley Poole said laws can change at any time because of
lobbying. Wesley Poole asked how the city managed to survive for so long without enforcing the
compactor provision. Dan Kaman said the city had the opportunity to switch to one hauler last year but
chose to enforce what is now on the books.

Jerry Garrett, city diversity consultant, 1500 East Bogart Road, said 23 years ago he represented Lewis
Knight on behalf of the N.A.A.C.P. over the compactor issue and it is important to point out it is not just
a matter of what the law says. He said when the Memphis trash haulers held strikes, it was a matter of
human dignity and this should be kept in mind. Jerry Garrett said many haulers raised their families in
this business and the city is dealing with human beings and families.



CITY OF SANDUSKY COMMISSIONERS - REGULAR SESSION
JULY 25, 2011 PAGE |6

Julie Killian, 1133 Third Street, said she utilized Yoeder Construction for roofing and siding at her home
and asked why this is not being inspected since a permit was pulled for the job. Julie Killian said her roof
was ruined and water was coming out of an outlet; the siding now needs to be replaced because it is
bowed. She asked why the city does not have a process for complaining so that this does not happen to
someone else. Julie Killian said when she inquired about having something done about this she was told
the persons who were subject to embezzlement were important, not those who had work done by the
company. Todd Roth said inspections are scheduled during construction projects and will meet with Julie
Killian to see if this complaint can be resolved.

Juanita Sherrills, 2400 Milan Road, said the Keller building is beautiful with a historic feeling and asked if
Thomas Fortin purchased this building for $100,000; Dave Waddington said the building has not yet
been purchased. Juanita Sherrills said city hall would look better if it were moved downtown. Juanita
Sherrills asked about the city getting money back that was paid for the study performed by the
Anderson Economic Group; Carrie Handy said the downtown market study was finished and will provide
a copy to Juanita Sherrills. Juanita Sherrills said the downtown buildings are dilapidated and vacant and
asked why the city is considering the use of CDBG money for them as this money should be for poverty
stricken residents. Dan Kaman said a yearly report is provided for these funds and that Carrie Handy
could talk about this after the meeting. Juanita Sherrills said she would like to organize the National
Night Out which was talked about at the last city commission meeting.

Marvin Hunter, 1209 Johnson Street, said he finds it reprehensible that he is not exempted from
curbside service and if placed in zones, he can no longer financially afford to run his business as the city
is telling him what can be done in two days must be done in five. He said this adds fuel and other costs.
He said if residents have trash picked up from their backyard, it is not considered curbside service.
Marvin Hunter said it does not matter what he complies with, there are city ordinances to discourage
him and make him spend more money.

Willie McCarty, 632% East Adams Street, said the police officers did not make an incorrect or
unprofessional remark to him. Willie McCarty said Don Icsman helped do all he could to make his event
a success (the Pow Wow at Shoreline Park). He said the message which should be taken from his
previous remarks is about a misunderstanding between the owners of a large waterfront facility (the
Sandusky Yacht Club). He runs a not-for-profit company and stated Section 519.09 of the noise control
ordinance provides for exceptions and suggested he should have been exempted from obtaining a noise
permit. Willie McCarty said he respects the law enforcement personnel, but is not pleased with being
told what to do at two o’clock in the afternoon; he said the city cannot pick and choose whom to
enforce the laws upon. Willie McCarty said the city should look at the laws on the books and see if
things are out of date. Don lcsman said there may be some misunderstanding about this law or the
waiver and even those who have obtained permits are not exempted from the sound; it is not a pass to
play music louder than the ordinance allows. Willie McCarty said the commission has a job to do right
now and not to worry about being here, or not, next year.

Barbara Clark, N.A.A.C.P. President, said the issue with trash haulers is not over and she would like to
see something done to benefit everyone in the community. She said the children in the community are
on her mind and asked if the city still has a curfew law; she said the recent beating incident involved ten
to twenty kids beating up one person and asked where the parents are. Barbara Clark said she believes
the police know who these children are, who their parents are, and that the community should come
together and have a town hall meeting to discuss how to deal with parents and the curfew law. Barbara
Clark said there are some kids in the detention home and asked what the punishment is for their
parents. She said this is not about color. Diedre Cole said if she had her way, the parents would be
sitting in the detention home with their children. She suggested lowering the curfew time to 9 p.m.
(from 11 p.m.).

Sharon Johnson, 1139 Fifth Street, asked if the final payment has been made to the contractor for the
paper district marina and Dan Kaman said this payment will be made once the timeline is complete and
the items on the punch list are completed. Dan Kaman said the city is holding back $100,000+ and will
not make final payment until the city is happy with the end result/product. Sharon Johnson asked if
there is an advertising budget for the paper district marina and Dan Kaman said there is not one for
2011. He said the marina is being advertised online. Sharon Johnson said there is city land for sale on
Cleveland Road by the radio station, on Pipe Street and on Old Railroad, yet no appraisals were
performed. Dan Kaman said the real estate agent used comparables for these properties so that the city
did not have to spend money up front and once offers are made, appraisals and surveys will be
performed. Sharon Johnson said the city should take the offer of $1,000 more per acre for the Old
Railroad property and Dan Kaman said someone else may offer even more after the offer is accepted.
Pervis Brown said any new business should expect to lose money in the first year.



CITY OF SANDUSKY COMMISSIONERS - REGULAR SESSION
JULY 25, 2011 PAGE |7

Jim Lang provided an update from the police department regarding the recent findings released by the
ICMA in their comprehensive analysis. Jim Lang said there were 32 recommendations made with six
having already been implemented including:

e A continuation of the 12-hour shift schedules
e Detectives working evenings and weekends

e Detectives are effective in their investigations and no further recommendations should
be implemented

e Policy manual directive regarding evidence and property was completed last week
e Review options to expand evidence - was completed last week including the creation of
an additional room for DNA evidence

e Training programs, i.e. college tuition reimbursement, is included the union contract and is a
covered reimbursement

Jim Lang said there are other items being worked on and an update will be provided at a future meeting.
Jim Lang showed a map with colored pins identifying the areas where shots have been fired or reports
of shots being fired. He said these locations are scattered throughout the city but there is a small group
near Hancock Street, Camp Street & MacArthur Park, and near Firelands Community Hospital.

At 6:53 p.m., Dan Kaman announced adjournment of the open session. Two executive sessions were
held beginning at 7 p.m. At 8:15 p.m., Dan Kaman announced adjournment.

Kelly L. Kresser Daniel J. Kaman
Clerk of the City Commission President of the City Commission



